
 
 

 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
PURCHASING DIVISION 1100 TENTH STREET, COLUMBUS, GEORGIA 31901 

P. O. BOX 1340, COLUMBUS, GEORGIA 31902-1340 
  706-653-4105, Fax 706-225-3033 
  www.columbusga.org 

  
May 1, 2018 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 2 

Inmate Medical & Pharmacy Services for  
Muscogee County Jail (Annual Contract) 

RFP No. 18-0019 
 

Proposals should include acknowledgement of receipt for all Addenda. 
 

 
Vendors are informed that the above subject RFP is hereby modified, corrected, or supplemented as specified, 
described and set forth in this Addendum: 
 
 

I. PROPOSAL DUE DATE: 
The due date is extended to Friday, May 18, 2018 no later than 5:00 PM. 
 

II. QUESTIONS/RESPONSES: 
A. Answer 7 from the 2013 Questions and Answers, as updated with current information, 

indicates that MCJ is subject to a 1999 Consent Decree that includes requirements for 
healthcare. 
1. Please provide a copy of the original Consent Decree and any subsequent addenda or 

modifications thereto. 
Response:  Please find attached the original Consent Decree and the last signed DOJ 
report.  Mental Health and High Suicide Precaution (HSP) are the only remaining areas 
under DOJ scrutiny.  All areas of the jail have been met the requirements of DOJ and are 
no longer being reviewed. 
 

2. Please indicate how the Consent Decree is currently monitored. 
Response:  Since 1999 DOJ made two site-visits annually. In 2016, the MCJ was 
substantially in compliance in all areas and is in the final month of a two year period in 
which we must maintain the standard. No additional DOJ visits are scheduled at this time 
and was suggested that the final review would not be on-site and that the MCJ would be 
removed from DOJ review.  
 

3. If there is active Court monitoring, please provide the most recent Court monitor report for 
this action. 
Response:  There is no current monitoring.  
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B. Several answers from the 2013 Questions and Answers, as updated with current information, 
suggest that the current healthcare contractor is providing a proprietary electronic medical 
record.   
1. Does the MCSO have an agreement with the current healthcare provider for transitioning 

the EHR in the event the contract is not re-awarded to the incumbent?  If so, please 
describe the transition plan 
Response:  Current contract calls for the current vendor, upon termination of the contract, 
to gather and deliver all physical medical records to the SHERIFF, and shall be property of 
the Sheriff’s Office. Electronic records will be made available, upon request by the 
SHERIFF or COUNTY. 
 

2. Is the MCSO satisfied with the current EHR and does it meet all requirements for reporting 
and interfacing with other information systems? 
Response:  The current EHR meets all requirements needed for the clinic needs.  
 

3. Please identify the electronic interfaces currently in operation for the EHR.  Does it 
interface with pharmacy?  Laboratory?  Radiology? 
Response:  The Jail Management System is an antiquated system that does not fully 
integrate with EHR. A new JMS system is in the works that should be able to work with 
any EHR used. The current EHR interfaces with pharmacy, laboratory and partial jail 
system. It does not interface with radiology. 
 

4. Is an EHR required under the RFP?  If so, is the MCSO prepared to increase its healthcare 
budget to acquire an EHR that is not tied to a particular healthcare contractor? 
Response:  Use of the EHR is not required for the RFP, however there is an expectation 
for vendors to have a recording method that suits the needs of a large jail. The Muscogee 
County Sheriff’s Office is not open to increasing the budget for EHR. 

 
C. Does the MCSO utilize any Health Information Exchanges to obtain or share healthcare-

related information and support continuity of care?  For example, is there any electronic 
database through which inmate-reported medications can be verified? 
Response:  No, they do not. Medications are verified via telephone from the patients’ 
pharmacy.  

 
D. RFP page 15, at Section 4, paragraph B, requires bidders to provide names and titles of 

professional staff to be dedicated to the contract.  Typically, most existing staff transition to a 
new healthcare contractor and it is not appropriate for non-incumbent bidders to contact these 
staff ahead of award.  For non-incumbent bidders, is it permissible to provide job descriptions 
in lieu of resumes where needed? 
Response:  We would like information on the company’s senior staff/management team, as 
well as job descriptions for each of the different type of positions you plan to use. 

 
E. Answer 19 from the 2013 Questions and Answers, as updated with current information, 

indicates that MCJ does not have any negative pressure rooms.  When a patient is suspected of 
harboring infectious disease such as tuberculosis that require placement in negative pressure 
room, what steps are currently taken to ensure the risk of contagion is minimized?  Where is 
the patient placed? 
Response:  The inmate is isolated in a Holding Cell (HD Cell), out of general population to 
minimize exposure. They are issued masks to wear and officers dealing with the inmate will 
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also have masks. When it is determined that the inmate may need a higher level of healthcare, 
they are transported to Piedmont Medical Center for treatment. 

 
F. Answer 25 from the 2013 Questions and Answers, as updated with current information, 

indicates that MCJ provides methadone to pregnant inmates who are already on methadone or 
require withdrawal management.  Is the MCSO considering expansion of this program to 
provide medication assisted therapy for other inmates?  If so, please describe. 
Response:  Not at this time. 

 
G. Answer 37 from the 2013 Questions and Answers, as updated with current information, 

indicates that there is an electronic grievance system in place.   
1. Does this system utilize kiosks accessed by the inmates?  If so, please identify the kiosk 

system.  
Response:  Our current commissary vendor is Legacy. They use a kiosk system for 
grievances, sick call, commissary, inmate requests, etc. They use the JailATM system for 
these functions.  
 

2. Is there a similar electronic sick call submission process? 
Response:  Yes, same system. 
 

H. Answer 52 from the 2013 Questions and Answers, as updated with current information, 
indicates that on average there are four inmates on suicide watch each day.  Answer 74 from 
the 2013 Questions and Answers, as updated with current information, indicates that “suicide 
is managed by a MT.”   
1. Please confirm that “MT” is an abbreviation for “medical technician.” 

Response:  MT is Medical Technician. 
 

2. Please confirm that the healthcare contractor (not the mental health contractor, and not 
MCSO officers) is responsible for providing the staff to monitor patients on suicide watch.  
Response:  The monitoring of HSP inmates are currently supervised by personnel 
employed by the healthcare contractor. 
 

3. If the healthcare contractor is responsible for providing the staff to monitor patients on 
suicide watch, please indicate: 
a. All of the locations where patients may be placed on watch  

Response:  HSP inmates are held in the intake/release area in holding cells (HD Cells) 
there are (13) total HD cells. Four (4) dedicated to male inmates on HSP and (2) 
dedicated to female inmates. However, all (13) may be used if needed. One cellblock in 
the 2002 tower, (4G), houses our problem inmates. They are deemed our worse 
inmates and are kept from general population inmates. The inmates are housed in a 
designated cell within the cellblock and checked on by the officers working the floor, 
not by clinic staff.  

 
b. Whether a single staff member, tasked with observing patients on watch, may monitor 

more than one patient at a time (and if so, what limit, if any, the MCSO places on the 
number of patients that can be monitored by a single staff member).  
Response:  One healthcare employee will monitor all inmates placed on HSP. The 
exception is if an inmate is placed on DIRECT SUPERVISION, then an officer will be 
used to monitor that inmate. 
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c. Whether the MCJ uses CCTV to supplement suicide watch monitoring.  
Response:  We do not use CCTV to supplement HSP monitoring. 

 
I. Does the County intend to seek and accreditation? 

Response:   No 
 

J. When is the next DOJ review for the facility? 
Response:  The date initially given to us was April 2018. However, they have not scheduled 
any visits or meetings. So we do not currently have a date for the next DOJ visit. 
 

K. Are Dialysis services performed on-site or off-site?  
Response:  Dialysis is done off site. 
 

L. Do you currently have mobile x-ray services or is there x-ray equipment on-site? 
Response:  We utilize a mobile X-ray service. 
 

M. RFP Page 20, item j.24 refers to “penalties for non-compliance”.  
1. Please clarify if any penalties have been imposed over the past 24 calendar months. 

Response:  No penalties were assessed during that period.  The penalties for non-
compliance requirement was added to this new RFP. 

 
2. Please provide examples or a description of the penalties referenced.  

Response:  Refer to page five (5) of this Addendum for an example provided by CCS. 
 

 
III. FORTHCOMING ADDENDUM: 

The Purchasing Division has received a plethora of questions regarding this annual contract.  Within 
the next several business days, Columbus Consolidated Government will release another addendum 
to answer questions that are not included in this Addendum. 
 

 
 

Andrea J. McCorvey, 
Purchasing Division Manager 
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